

DCEO

Office of Equal Opportunity Monitoring and Compliance

Method Of Administration

(Illinois WIA EO/ADA)

August 2014

Andre' B. Ashmore, J.D.
State of Illinois WIA EO Officer
217-785-6474 or 217-299-3561

**Illinois Methods of Administration (MOA) 2014 Attachments
(July 23, 2014)**

<u>NO</u>	<u>Description</u>
1.1	DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-01 Element #1 EO Officer Designation Letter
1.2	State WIA EO Officer Designation Letter (Andre' B. Ashmore)
1.3	DCEO's Organizational Chart
1.4	DCEO's WIA EO Officer Job Description
1.5	Office of Equal Opportunity Monitoring & Compliance Organizational Chart
1.6	DCEO LWIA EO Officers Roster
1.7	Sample LWIA EO Officer Organizational Chart (LWIA #11- Kankakee)
1.8	Sample LWIA EO Officer Job Description (LWIA #1 - Lake County)
1.9	Sample Budget
1.10	Sample LWIA EO Officer Budget (LWIA #26 - Southern 14)
1.11	EOMC Training Summary
2.1	DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-02 Element #2 Notice of Communication
2.2	EO is the Law Poster in English and Spanish
2.3	State Job Application Form (CMS Form 100)
2.4	Propio Language Service
2.5	DCEO's Director EO/EEO Policy Statement
2.6	Sample Applicant Certification
2.7	Sample list of Educational Seminars & Skill Building Workshops
3.1	DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-03 Element #3 Contracting & Procurement Assurances, Boiler Plate Clauses, and Certification Clauses
3.2	Partial Sample of Illinois Strategic 5-Year Plan (Cover Sheet Only)
3.3	Sample Terms & Conditions, Clauses, & Certifications found in RFPs & Contracts
3.4	Sample Illinois Workforce Development System Information Requested from New Providers during the Application Process
4.1	DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-04 Element #4 Universal Access
4.2	Sample LWIA One-Stop (workNet Center) Plan to Insure Universal Access
4.3	Taglines Sample
4.4	Assistive Technology Information and a sample of Equipment in Resource Centers
5.1	DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-05 Element #5 Compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1917, as Amended
5.2	Illinois Accessibility Code
5.3	Illinois Relay Information
5.4	Statewide Interpreter Referral Agencies
6.1	DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-06 Element #6 Data & Information Collection & Maintenance
6.2	Sample Standard Deviation Model
6.3	List of Federal Grants Monitored

- 7.1 DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-07 Element #7 Monitoring LWIAs & Grant Recipients**
- 7.2 Monitoring Instrument**
- 7.3 Facility Assessment Monitoring Instrument**
- 7.4 LWIA Self-Evaluation Tool**
- 7.5 Local Office Staff Assessment & Questionnaire**
- 7.6 Client Interview/Survey**
- 7.7 Sample Monitoring Announcement Letter**
- 7.8 Sample Monitoring Schedule**
- 7.9 List of Federally Funded WIA Programs Monitored**
- 7.10 Sample Findings Letter & Response from LWIA**

- 8.1 DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-08 Element #8 Complaint Processing Procedures**
- 8.2 Complaint Processing Procedures**
- 8.3 Complaint Log**
- 8.4 Complaint Log Instructions (CRC 2004)**

- 9.1 DCEO Policy Letter NO. 00-09 Element #9 Corrective Actions/Sanctions**
- 9.2 Sanction Schedule**

ELEMENT ONE
DESIGNATION OF STATE AND LOCAL
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY (EO) OFFICERS

Introduction

The Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity's (DCEO) Office of EO Monitoring & Compliance (EOMC) oversees the implementation of the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity (EO) provisions of the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (WIA) as amended by Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), July 22, 2014.

As instructed in the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions contained in **29 CFR 37.23 through 28 and 54**, EOMC through Element One has set clear direction on who can serve as EO Officers as well as defined responsibilities at the state and local level. EO/WIA Policy Letter No. 00-01 issued June 20, 2001 sets forth the requirements at the local level (see EO/WIA Policy Letter No. 00-01 - Attachment #1.1).

State Level EO Officer

The Director of DCEO, Adam Pollet, designated Andre' B. Ashmore as the State WIA EO Officer. Mr. Ashmore serves as the Deputy Director of the Office of Equal Opportunity Monitoring and Compliance (EOMC). (See EO Officer Designation Letter - Attachment #1.2) As required by federal statute, Mr. Ashmore is a senior-level employee at the state level and reports directly to the Agency's Director on all matters related to his position. (See DCEO Organizational Chart - Attachment 1.3) Mr. Ashmore will also oversee DCEO's Agency-wide EO Compliance/Education & Training Programs.

Responsibilities for the Deputy Director of EOMC included in the attached job description include, but not limited to: (See EO State WIA EO Officer's Job Description – Attachment #4)

- Provide oversight for all WIA EO issues on behalf of DCEO's Director and;
- Assume and coordinate State EO responsibilities under WIA Section 188 and 29 CFR Part 37;
- Assume overall responsibility for developing, implementing and updating the Methods of Administration (MOA);
- Oversee DCEO's Agency-wide EO Compliance/Education and Training Programs;
- Compile a quarterly report with significant events for the Director.
- Provide oversight and assume responsibility for DCEO's EO/Affirmative Action Program;
- Ensure the uniformity in nondiscriminatory policy of EO requirements for grant recipients;
- Oversee DCEO's Agency-wide EO Compliance/Education and training programs;
- Train and educate LWIA EO Officers, managers, and staff of their roles and responsibilities regarding WIA equal opportunity policies and procedures;
- Provide technical assistance to LWIA EO Officers on analysis and coordinate with general counsel regarding issues such as Federal Civil Rights, investigations, rehabilitation legislation, regulatory law, and Federal policies and programs;
- Monitor entities receiving WIA Title 1 Funds to ensure compliance; and,
- Implement corrective actions when there are findings of noncompliance.

The Director of EOMC has the oversight responsibility to ensure that all DCEO employees, inclusive of management, understand and comply with all Equal Opportunity Non-Discrimination rules and regulations. He ensures compliance with Section 2-105 of the Illinois Human Rights Act; Title 56 of the Illinois Administrative Code, Chapter II: Part 2520: Subpart H of the Human Rights Rules and

Regulations and all other federal related EEO laws. The Deputy Director also oversees Education and Training, Tuition Reimbursement and Drug-Free Workplace Programs.

DCEO created the Office of Equal Opportunity Monitoring and Compliance as a structural format change that organizationally provides a direct chain-of-command to the Director. This practice alleviates previous CRC's ruling to DCEO's non-compliance and it abates perceived or actual conflict of interest that would prohibit Mr. Ashmore from fulfilling his State WIA Officer duties. If needed, the Agency's Director will take whatever necessary actions are needed to eliminate conflicts of interests (i.e. use a EOMC staff member who has the necessary knowledge, skills, and abilities or, as the regulations prescribe, the matters are directed to the CRC to preserve due process).

Two full time staff are assigned to the Office of Equal Opportunity Monitoring and Compliance to conduct WIA EO investigations, monitoring, and compliance activities. A third full-time staff is responsible for monitoring DCEO's internal EO, Affirmative Action, Drug Free Workforce, Tuition Reimbursement, and Americans with Disabilities initiatives. This staff trains and monitors statewide grantees associated with DCEO programs to ensure full compliance with all EO/Non-discrimination provisions of State & Federal laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, & Executive Orders. (See EOMC Organizational Chart – Attachment #5)

Office staff answer EO/ADA questions, provide technical assistance and conduct on-site visits at the Illinois workNet Centers and other service providers to ensure that WIA Title I financially assisted programs and activities operate in a non-discriminatory manner. Using the monitoring tools and processes described in detail under Element 7 of this MOA, the EO staff works with recipients to identify problem areas and to develop a plan for corrective action when deficiencies occur. Follow-up visits may be scheduled to ensure that the appropriate actions were fulfilled.

Local Level EO Officers

Each local workforce area will designate an EO Officer as stipulated by the above referenced policy letter. It details all requirements for local WIA EO Officers, and defines their roles, responsibilities, and requirements to comply with 29 CFR Part 37.23 - 37.28 (See LWIA EO Officers Roster - [Attachment 1.6](#)) and (See a sample of LWIA Organizational Chart - [Attachment 1.7](#))

The State WIA EO Officer reviews all LWIA EO officer designees to ensure they meet the eligibility requirements and other duties or responsibilities do not create a conflict, or the appearance of a conflict with the responsibilities of an EO Officer.

The LWIA EO Officer's duties include, but are not limited to: (See LWIA EO Officer Job Description – Attachment 1.8)

- Serving as the LWIA grant recipient's designated local WIA EO officer and liaison with the State WIA EO Officer;
- Monitoring and investigating the LWIA recipient's and sub-recipient's activities for compliance with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity obligations under WIA Title I and 29 CFR Part 37; developing and publishing the LWIA grant recipient's procedures for processing discrimination complaints under Sections 37.76 through 37.79 of 29 CFR Part 37, and ensuring that those procedures are followed;
- Reviewing the local written policies to ensure that they are nondiscriminatory; and coordinating and conducting EO training sessions to train LWIA managers and staff of their roles and responsibilities regarding the WIA equal opportunity policies and procedures;
- Providing technical assistance to LWIA grant recipient management on analysis and interpretation of federal civil rights and rehabilitation legislation, regulations, policies and programs affecting the service delivery operations within the Illinois WIA program; and,
- Reporting directly to the LWIA grant recipient about all local equal opportunity matters.

- Maintaining records of most recent Demographic Analysis, this includes giving special emphasis to demographic group analysis using the Standard Deviation method.

In instances where a perceived or actual conflict of interest arises at the LWIA level, the senior level administrator may reassign to another qualified staff, person, or ask the State WIA EO Officer for assistance.

Publicizing WIA EO Officer Information

DCEO makes the identity of the State WIA EO Officer known to WIA Partners and to any interested member of the public by the following methods:

- Formal notice to USDOL, LWIA recipients, and partners (See [Attachment 1.2](#), sample State Notice of WIA EO Appointment);
- Posting of the notice “Equal Opportunity is the Law” prominently in common areas in all local Illinois workNet Centers. The poster notice gives the name, organization name, address, e-mail address, telephone, and TDD/TTY numbers of the State WIA EO Officer and the relevant LWIA EO Officer. The notice is posted in English and Spanish and any other languages spoken by significant portions of the population of the area in which the notice is posted;
- Publishing the name of the State WIA EO Officer in the Department's general phone directory (available on the Internet and in hard-copy), along with equal opportunity policies and procedures applicable to WIA employees and procedural manuals providing guidelines for handling complaints from WIA applicants, employees and third parties; and,
- Disseminating written notice brochures to WIA Partners and to any interested member of the public.
- DCEO's web page contains EO information for the workforce investment community that includes contact information for the State and LWIA EO Officers.

LWIA's publicize the name of their LWIA EO Officer to the State, partners, WIA applicants, and the public by the following methods:

- Submitting formal notice to the State WIA EO Officer. (See [Attachment 1.7](#), sample local notices).
- LWIA EO officer names on the notice “Equal Opportunity is The Law” prominently, in reasonable numbers and places, in local workNet and affiliated centers;
- LWIA staff members provide the name of the LWIA EO Officer through internal documents and memoranda and other written or electronic communication; orientation and application processes in employer handbooks and manuals; and ensuring the “Equal Opportunity is the Law” notice is made available to each participant during the intake process and made part of the participant's file; and,
- Listing the names and contact information of each LWIA EO Officer on the web pages of the local LWIAs.

Resources

The types of administrative support the State WIA EO Officer receives from various resources including:

- Office of Employment and Training (ETA) provide funding for two WIA EO Compliance Monitors, program guidance, IWDS information, and handles non-discrimination program complaints.
- Legal Counsel to ensure that DCEO's nondiscrimination and EO Obligations are appropriately addressed;
- Assistance by DCEO Agency Services for professional graphics operations including the publication of posters, brochures and training manuals;
- Information sharing with the Illinois Department of Employment Security (IDES) and Illinois workNet on regional labor market and demographic data;
- Technical advice from the Illinois Department of Labor;
- Illinois Assistive Technology Program provides technical advice, training, and guidance about new assistive technology. (TEL: 217-522-7895)
- Training by the Illinois Department of Human Services, Division of Rehabilitation Services on technology programs to the Illinois workNet Centers staff;
- Technical assistance and resources by the USDOL Offices for planning training initiatives, as well as with complaint proceedings;
- Assistance by the USDOL Civil Rights Center with technical information regarding development policies and procedures for implementing the nondiscriminatory policies for the State and local levels; and,
- Disability resource, educational information, and employment opportunities for people with disabilities is available through disability Resource Coordinators (dRC).

Financial support for the WIA EO activities is provided by WIA 5% administrative funds. This expenditure authority is approved by the state legislative body (the Illinois General Assembly) on an annual basis (See Sample Budget - Attachment 1.9).

All LWIAs receive their annual WIA Title I federal program budgets from the State. This process begins with the annual submission grant application complete with budget and program objectives. In addition, all LWIAs at a minimum fund one EO Officer's activities from their administrative WIA Title I funding levels. (See [Attachment 1.10](#), sample LWIA budgets).

Training

29 CFR 37.26 requires the State WIA EO Officer and LWIA EO Officers and their staffs to be sufficiently funded, administratively supported, and trained to maintain competency to commensurate with their level of assignment, knowledge, skills, and abilities necessary to carry out their responsibilities and comply with the language found in 29 CFR 34.22 (a). DCEO has instituted best practices that ensure all EO staff receives adequate training. (See EO Officer Training Summary – Attachment 1.11)

The State WIA EO Officer provides opportunities for scheduled training that includes activities such as:

- Information and resource sharing and regional best practices shared.
- Collaborative efforts and partnerships that communicate statewide EO accountability, ADA accessibility, and LWIA monitoring activities.
- On-site or regional technical assistance is requested from USDOL Civil Rights Center Staff to train State and LWIA EO personnel.

ELEMENT TWO
NOTICE AND COMMUNICATION
29 CFR 37.54 (D) (iii)

Introduction

Widespread notification and communication of equal opportunity policy ensures DCEO's commitment to nondiscrimination. Notices and other forms of communication are distributed to all appropriate parties.

Element Two details how DCEO, EOMC, and LWIAs comply with **29 CFR 37.29 through 37.36** in ensuring individuals are informed of the state's and the recipient's obligation to operate its programs and activities in a nondiscriminatory manner, and the extent of the rights to file complaints of discrimination.

Notification – Initial and Ongoing

The "Equal Opportunity Is the Law" notice was disseminated to all Local Workforce Investment Board (LWIB) Chairpersons, WIA recipients, WIA State, and Local Partner Agencies through the Illinois Policy Letter system, specifically Policy Letter No. 99-3 and Policy Letter 00-02. (See DCEO Policy Letter 00-02 Notice of Communication - [Attachment 2.1](#)), Policy Letters: This Policy Letter required that the "Equal Opportunity Is the Law" notice be:

- Posted prominently, in reasonable numbers and places;
- Disseminated in internal memoranda and other written or electronic communications (i.e. Illinois workNet Welcome Internet Homepage);
- Included in handbooks or manuals;
- Made available to each participant and made a part of the participant's file;
- Provided in appropriate formats to individuals with visual impairments; and,
- Where notice has been given in an alternative format to a participant with a visual impairment, a record that such notice has been given is to be made a part of the participant's file.

The "Equal Opportunity is the Law" notice (See Equal Opportunity is the Law Poster - [Attachment 2.2](#)) is posted prominently in English and Spanish for the benefit of the public and clients in all of the appropriate locations at DCEO as well as all affiliated WIA Illinois workNet (both physical and electronic versions) Centers and Satellite locations in the State. Posters are available in English, Spanish, and Polish (in the City of Chicago). The notice is also available in alternative formats such as by audiocassette for the visually impaired.

Notification to Individuals with Disabilities

The "Equal Opportunity is the Law" notice is available to individuals with disabilities in the following ways:

- Large print, Braille and audiocassette versions of the notice are available to persons with visual impairments;
- Readers are made available to the visually impaired for use with websites where the notice is electronically posted at LWIA sites and Illinois workNet Centers; and,
- When requested, sign language interpreters are made available to persons with hearing impairments should they have questions about the notice or the filing process.

Each Illinois workNet Center resource room provides auxiliary aids and services such as:

- Qualified interpreters;
- Assistive listening headsets;
- Closed and open captioning on videos;
- Telecommunication devices for deaf persons;
- Computers that allow voice input and output;
- Readers;
- Taped texts;
- Brailled materials;
- Video-text imaging displays; and,
- Transcription services.

Every LWIA must indicate that a TDD/TTY number, or an equally effective means of communicating with individuals with hearing impairments, is noted on its local recruitment and marketing materials whenever a phone number is included. All public information includes the tag, “auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities,” on local recruitment and marketing materials. Each Illinois workNet Center is monitored for being physically and programmatically accessible (including telecommunication and computer accessibility) to individuals with disabilities every three (3) years or sooner if site locations were changed.

Recruitment Notification and Communication

When the State advertises for employment positions, the “DCEO is an Equal Opportunity employer” statement is always included. The main employment application utilized by the State of Illinois, Department of Central Management Services, includes the following language:

In compliance with the state and federal constitutions, the Illinois Human Rights Act, the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and Section 504 of the Federal Rehabilitation Act, the Department of Central Management Services does not discriminate in employment, contracts, or any other activity. If you have a complaint, please contact the Department of Central Management Services at Springfield (217) 785-1985 or (217) 524-1383 (TTD/TTY only) before the date of the test (See CMS Form 100 Employment Application - [Attachment 2.3](#)).

Notification to Persons of Limited English Proficiency

It is the responsibility of all WIA recipients and sub-recipients to ensure equal opportunity and equal access within their specific facility. When clients and applicants arrive for WIA Title I services, and need assistance in a language other than English, the LWIA staff utilizes established procedures to provide translation services for the client.

To provide effective communication methods, DCEO and its partners utilize the language interpreter services (**Propio**) contracted through the Illinois Department of Central Management (CMS) Telecommunication Unit. When using the service, employees follow the instructions illustrated in the brochure. (See Propio Language Services - [Attachment 2.4](#)):

Orientation Notification

Every new employee DCEO hires receives a new employee orientation manual and has access to the Agency's Affirmative Action Plan that contains an EO/EEO/AA policy statements implemented by the Director (See DCEO Director's EO Policy Statement - [Attachment 2.5](#)). At the local level, LWIAs discuss the rights of registrants and applicants for WIA services during orientation briefings. Each applicant attending the orientation briefing signs a statement which lists all training objectives, sign a statement indicating they were given "Equal Opportunity is the Law" brochure, how to file a discrimination complaint, the name of the LWIA EO Officer, and how to use the resource room. This statement is deposited in the applicant's file (See Sample Applicant Certification - [Attachment 2.6](#)).

Training

Employees are taught how to preventing employment discrimination from occurring in the workplace. DCEO's management preference is to prevent discrimination in the workplace when compared to the costs for remedying the consequences of discrimination. EOMC is committed to providing training and technical assistance, outreach and education programs to understand and prevent discrimination. DCEO (EOMC) conducts ongoing training opportunities (i.e. webinars, teleconferences, video conferences, on-site training, informational alerts, and provide the latest EO news bulletins) for LWIA EO Officers. The State WIA EO Officer directs individualized and sometimes, specialized technical assistance when needed. Individualized training is necessary to assist new EO Officers in their respective positions. DCEO also supports training for LWIA EO Officers through attendance at educational seminars and skill-building workshops. Expected outcomes are to eliminate discriminatory practices, sexual harassment, and other EO issues in the workplace (See Sample list of Educational Seminars & Skill Building Workshops - [Attachment 2.7](#)). EOMC staffs are certified in Internal Investigations, including certification from George Washington University in Conducting Advanced Workplace Investigations as well as Writing Final Agency Actions through the EEOC in Washington D.C.

ELEMENT THREE
REVIEW ASSURANCES, JOB TRAINING PLAN, CONTRACTS, POLICIES, AND PROCEDURES
29 CFR 37.54 (D) (I) (I) AND (D) (2) (I), (III) AND (IV)

Introduction

It is DCEO's policy to include a nondiscrimination and equal opportunity statement in all training plans, contracts, and requests for proposals, assurance clauses, and agreements. In addition, policies issued at the State and local levels reinforce the department's commitment to ensure nondiscrimination at all levels.

All grant applicants and training providers are required to adhere to the nondiscrimination provisions of WIA Section 188 regarding assurances of nondiscrimination and equal opportunity. The assurance commits the recipient to "comply fully with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions" of WIA and acknowledges the government's right to seek judicial enforcement of the assurance. The specific assurance language is found in 37.20 (a) (1). Additionally, all WIA funds recipients and training providers must ensure that the required EO assurance language is included in all documents. Where necessary, language regarding both programmatic and architectural accessibility to accommodate individuals with disabilities is also included. The Office of Employment and Training has issued guidance to the LWIAs in EO/WIA Policy Letter 00-03 that requires documentation attesting to the fact that such language was included.

Element Three addresses the implementation of **29 CFR 37.20 and 54** regarding the review of assurances, job training plans, contracts and policies and procedures.

General Assurances

The State of Illinois assures that the language contained in 29 CFR 37.20 is included in each application for financial assistance using Policy Letters and contractual obligations with the LWIA Agencies. WIA recipients are also required to include the required EO/ADA language in all sub-recipient applications as well. EO/WIA Policy Letter 00-03 requires that LWIAs furnish documents attesting to the fact that such language was included. The specific federal citing of this requirement is included in the State's standard boilerplate grant agreements, which the recipient and sub-recipient sign attesting to compliance of this requirement. (See DCEO Policy Letter 00-03 Review Assurances, Job Training Plans, Contracts and Policies and Procedures - [Attachment 3.1](#)).

Illinois' WIA Five Year Strategic Plan (See Partial Sample of Illinois 5-Year Strategic Plan – Cover Sheet Only - [Attachment 3.2](#)) contains specific provisions relating to Assurances. Below is a reflection of Illinois' specific assurances within the plan:

- The State assures that it will establish, in accordance with Section 184 of WIA, fiscal control and fund accounting procedures that may be necessary to ensure the proper disbursement of, and accounting for, funds paid to the State through the allotments made under Sections 127 and 132. (§112)(b)(11);
- The State assures that it will comply with Section 184(a)(6), which requires the Governor, every two years, certify to the Secretary, that - (A) the State has implemented the uniform administrative requirements referred to in Section 184(a)(3); (B) the State monitors local workforce areas to ensure compliance with the uniform administrative requirements as required under Section 184(a)(4); and (C) the State has taken appropriate action to secure compliance pursuant to Section 184(a)(5-6);
- The State assures that veterans are afforded employment and training activities authorized in Section 134 of WIA, to the extent practicable. (§112)(b)(17)(B);
- The State assures that it will comply with the confidentiality requirements of Section 136(f)(3);

- The State assures that no funds received under WIA are used to assist, promote, or deter union organizing. (§181)(b)(7);
- The State assures that it will comply with the nondiscrimination provisions of Section 188, including an assurance that a Methods of Administration has been developed and implemented; and,
- The State assures that it will collect and maintain data necessary to show compliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of Section 188.

At the local level, LWIA's are required to provide a narrative describing the local reviews of assurance, job-training plans, contracts and policies and procedures (See Sample Terms and Conditions Clauses and Certifications used in RFP's and Contracts - [Attachment 3.3](#)). LWIAs address how they are complying and will comply with the requirements of 37.20 and 37.54(d)(1)(i), and (2)(iii) and (iv), regarding the review of job training plans, contracts, and policies and procedures by developing a narrative to address:

- How each grant applicant and training provider seeking eligibility includes the equal opportunity assurance in its application for financial assistance under Title I of WIA;
- How the assurance is incorporated into each grant, cooperative agreement, contract or other arrangement whereby federal financial assistance under WIA Title I is made available;
- How each grant applicant and approved training provider is able to provide programmatic and architectural accessibility as required by subpart C of part 32; and
- The procedures of how job training plans, contract assurances, and other similar agreements entered into by recipients are both nondiscriminatory and contain required language regarding nondiscrimination and equal opportunity.

As part of the monitoring process, samples of job training plans, contracts and other agreements are reviewed to ensure nondiscrimination and contain the required language regarding nondiscrimination and equal opportunity. Element 7 of this MOA provides additional information regarding the monitoring process.

Assuring Accessibility

Through the State contractual grant agreement obligations, (See New Provider Application - [Attachment 3.4](#)) each WIA recipient and training provider must assure, by annual submission and sub-recipients agreements, that they provide programmatic and architectural accessibility for individuals with disabilities. When DCEO enters into contractual agreements with WIA recipients, compliance with program-specific laws and regulations are specified as the standard boilerplate language within the Program Terms and Conditions. This same language is further specified that any sub-recipients would be required to comply as well.

Monitoring of facilities using the ADA checklist provided within Element 7 provides the basis for examining accessibility issues. The State of Illinois reserves the right to cancel any award or to remove any training provider from the statewide list that does not provide programmatic and architectural accessibility as assured, as well as the right to conduct pre-award, on-site inspections of grant applicants to determine accessibility to individuals with disabilities.

Policy Development

Policy issuances are reviewed and approved by DCEO EOMC and The Office of Employment and Training staff, and members of the Policy Committee of the Illinois Workforce Partnership Association (consisting of all 23 local WIA recipients and other Workforce partners/officials).

Note:

1. Employment and Training Fiscal Monitoring Team review contractor clauses and certifications regularly. (Attachment 3.3)

2. The Program Staff monitors New Provider Applications very closely and the LWIAs check New Provider Applications annually. (Attachment 3.4)

ELEMENT FOUR
UNIVERSAL ACCESS
29 CFR 37.54 (D) (1) (VI)

Introduction

The Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity addressed requirements found in 29 CFR 37.54 (d)(1)(vi) and 29 CFR 37.42. DCEO desires equitable services to be provided among substantial portions of the eligible population through its outreach programs, which are designed to broaden the composition of the pool of those, considered for participation in the Workforce Investment Act to include members of both sexes; various race/ethnicity and age groups, and individuals with disabilities. These requirements are communicated to recipients in. (See Policy Letter No. 00-04 Universal Access - [Attachment 4.1](#)) All recipients are monitored based on customer demographic characteristics and composition in their local areas.

DCEO outlined how these efforts are accomplished in Outreach and Recruitment Programs, Communication Programs, Alternate Formats, and in Monitoring Programs mentioned below.

Outreach and Recruitment

All LWIAs describe outreach, recruitment, and priority of service efforts in their local methods of administration materials as well as their five-year plans. (See Attachments 4.2)

Communication

Recipients must ensure they take appropriate steps to communicate with individuals with disabilities, and that such communication is as effective as communications with others. In addition, when a significant proportion of persons being served are individuals with limited English proficiency, the recipient must provide the same information in languages other than English.

All public materials (brochures, pamphlets, publications, etc.) that describe WIA programs or activities must include the required language ("taglines") indicating that the program or activity in question is an **"equal opportunity employer/program"** and that **"auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities."** (See Taglines Samples - Attachment 4.3)

Assistive Technology and Auxiliary Aids (AT)

DCEO continues to work with workNet Centers (One-Stops) to replace obsolete assistive technology. LWIAs are encouraged to identify obsolete or outdated assistive hardware and software programs. In addition, LWIAs must program and plan budgets or work with partners to replace obsolete items. (See Assistive Technology Information and Sample of Equipment in Resource Centers - Attachment 4-4)

ELEMENT FIVE
COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 504
29 CFR 37.54 (D) (2) (V)

Introduction

DCEO is committed to providing services to persons with disabilities that are as effective as mainstream services. EOMC ensures that the LWIAs comply with requirements found in 29 CFR 37.54 (d)(2)(v) and 29 CFR 37.7, 37.8, and 37.9 Sub Parts B and C of 29 CFR Part 32. WIA programs and facilities are required to be accessible to individuals with disabilities. DCEO EO/WIA Policy Letter No. 00-05 requires recipients not to discriminate based on disability; adequate documentation of all aspects of training programs are required (See DCEO EO/WIA Policy Letter No. 00-05 Compliance with Section 504 - [Attachment 5.1](#)). Further examples of required guidance includes policies about reasonable accommodations, use of auxiliary aids and services, making discrimination or non-discrimination complaints, language assistance, and how to get assistance from the EO Officer. DCEO will continue efforts to ensure that people with disabilities or barriers to employment will have full access to WIA Programs and workNet Centers.

Legal Structure for Serving Individuals with Disabilities

DCEO ensures all recipients and service providers commit to provide written assurances and certificates in their agreements, grants, and contracts that they will comply with the requirements of:

- WIA Section 188;
- Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (the Rehab Act);
- The Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA); and,
- Section 504, as implemented by Title 29, Part 32 of the Code of Federal Regulations; and applicable disability laws.

Equal Effective Participation

The foundation of the general requirements in Section 188 is the principle that qualified individuals with disabilities must be provided an equal opportunity to participate in and benefit from the programs and services provided by the recipient. The State of Illinois recognizes in its practices the following definition of a “qualified individual with a disability” as:

- A person who has the requisite skills, experience, education, and other job-related requirements of the employment or training position that the individual holds or desires and who, *with or without reasonable accommodation, **can perform the essential functions of the position.***

A primary goal of the general requirements is the ‘equally effective ‘participation of qualified individuals with disabilities by ensuring that individuals with disabilities are integrated to the maximum extent appropriate. This goal does not preclude a recipient from providing different or separate services or programs for individuals with disabilities. However, it does mean that these separate, or special, services must be as effective as the mainstream services – those programs and services designed for persons without disabilities.

State Laws Ban Discrimination

WIA required that states offer a range of different job training, education, and other human resource programs through their service delivery systems. DCEO adheres to Section 188 of WIA, which bars

discrimination from programs, services, and employment based on a disability. Illinois workforce systems emphasize the need to provide services to individuals with disabilities, must be alongside – not segregated from – people without disabilities, to the greatest extent possible. Among the types of discrimination prohibited by these regulations on the grounds of disability are:

- Denying a qualified individual with a disability the opportunity to participate in or benefit from aid, services or training;
- Affording a qualified individual with a disability an opportunity to participate in or benefit from the aid, services, or training that is not equal to that afforded others;
- Providing a qualified individual with a disability with an aid, service or training that is not as effective in affording equal opportunity to obtain the same result, to gain the same benefit, or to reach the same level of achievement as that provided to others;
- Providing different, segregated or separate aid, services, or training to individuals with disabilities unless such action is necessary to provide qualified individuals with disabilities with aid, services or training that are as effective as those provided to others;
- Denying a qualified individual with a disability the opportunity to participate as a member of planning or advisory boards; or,
- Otherwise limiting a qualified individual with a disability in enjoyment of any right, privilege, advantage, or opportunity enjoyed by others receiving any aid, benefit, service, or training.

In addition, DCEO provides reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities in all aspects of its programs, services, and activities (29 CFR 32.13). Accommodations may include, but are not limited to, qualified sign language interpreters, readers, auxiliary aids, and alternate formats. Reasonable modifications in policies, practices, or procedures are made, when necessary, to avoid discrimination based on disability, unless making the modifications would result in an undue hardship on the Agency (i.e. unreasonable cost or would fundamentally alter the nature of the service, program, or activity).

Finally, the State WIA EO Officer provides guidance to staff and recipients regarding disability requirements of applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

Two Types of Accessibility

DCEO recognizes and complies with the two types of accessibility measurements contained within Section 188; (1) architectural and (2) programmatic accessibility. Architectural Accessibility includes the kinds of physical modifications that are most commonly thought of as access for persons with disabilities. In other words, when one reads the sign “Accessible” at the front door of an operation, most people would think of what we talked about earlier – wheelchair ramps and wide bathroom stalls. Program accessibility means that a program or activity must be set up in advance to be accessible to qualified persons with disabilities.

Program access must be prepared to accommodate individuals with physical disabilities, as well as those with cognitive disabilities, such as mental retardation or learning disabilities. An example of being accessible for an individual with a cognitive disability may be to have a quiet space to write in, or using less complex wording in verbal and written communications. Both architectural and programmatic accessibility are addressed below in further detail.

Architectural Accessibility

DCEO works with State and LWIA partners to ensure each workNet Center (One-Stop) or Affiliate site comply with the most stringent architectural accessibility guidelines i.e. the Illinois Accessibility Code (IAC). (See Illinois Accessibility Code - [Attachment 5.2](#)). Approved reasonable accommodations are provided for people who have difficulty walking or maintaining balance, people who use wheelchairs, crutches, canes, walkers or have restrictive gaits. Surfaces must be hard surface and slip resistant. Parking lots, walkways, corridors, elevators, carpets, and entry doors must comply with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG). Regular on-site monitoring of workNet Centers and their affiliated sites ensures architectural accessibility. Examples of the types of physical modifications of facilities to accommodate use by individuals with disabilities include:

- Parking lots and walkways
- Buildings
- Rooms (ones people with disability are expected to use)
- Indoor facilities (*e.g.*, computer kiosk, office cubicle)
- Alarm systems
- Signs

Note the complete E-Mail address for the IAC:

<http://www.illinois.gov/cdb/business/codes/Pages/IllinoisAccessibilityCode.aspx>

Programmatic Accessibility

Providing accessibility for people with disabilities does not mean that WIA recipients can wait for persons with disabilities to show up at their doorstep and ask to participate in their programs and activities. Rather, it means that the recipient must both plan and act ahead of time. They must plan for and take a wide range of actions, in advance, to be ready to provide effective services – long before the first person with a disability shows up. A recipient is not required to make every part of all of its facilities accessible. However, if a particular program is available in only one location, that site must be made accessible or the program must be made available at an alternative, accessible, site.

DCEO ensures that workNet systems of service delivery contractors comply with programmatic-related provisions of Section 188 which prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities. DCEO also prohibits disability-based discrimination by public entities whether or not they receive federal financial assistance. DCEO adopted the WIA implementing regulations that involves the three-part definition used by the Rehab Act and the ADA to define “disability” as:

- A physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of the major life activities of such an individual
- A record of such an impairment; or
- Being regarded as having such and impairment (i.e. person is considered as having a disability if that person has a history or record of a physical or mental impairment that substantially limited one or more major life activity).

A person who qualifies under any of the above listed criteria is deemed an individual with a disability for purposes of coverage under Section 188 of WIA. The federal laws barring discrimination on the basis of disability do contain several exceptions to the definition of “individual with a disability.” These exceptions deal with disorders or diseases that affect job performance and safety -- sexual behavior

disorders, current illegal use of drugs, current alcohol abuse, or currently contagious disease or infection.

DCEO recognizes the following examples of actions considered programmatically discriminatory under Section 188 of WIA:

- When a qualified person with a disability applies to participate in a WIA-funded activity and s/he is denied because of his or her disability
- When a person with a disability is not given an equal opportunity to get the same results or benefits from a program or activity that people without disabilities receive
- When a particular person or group with a disability is asked to pay any extra fees to cover the extra cost of accommodating their disability

EOMC opposes all actions considered discriminatory and unlawful. Even if an individual or entity had not intended to discriminate, the above actions are, by themselves, unlawful and prohibited. The intent may be not to discriminate, but the impact is that of discrimination and un-equal opportunity, and the penalty for such violations will be sanctioned through the enforcement mechanisms provided within Element Nine of this MOA.

DCEO advocates for programmatic accessibility awareness by all workforce partners and encourages using taglines that “auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities in all of our Illinois workNet Centers” on all printed materials. Auxiliary aids and services are those qualified persons, tools, equipment, or services that effectively deliver materials to persons with disabilities. Recipients are required to furnish appropriate auxiliary aids or services when necessary. The recipient must provide an opportunity for individuals with disabilities to request the auxiliary aids and services of their choice. Recipients should give deference to the request of the person with a disability because:

- There is a wide range of disabilities
- A person with a disability may or may not be aware of various auxiliary aids and services that are available;
- Personal circumstances affect one’s auxiliary aid or service choice.

Effectively communicating with persons with disabilities also includes the following;

- Recipients should let interested individuals know of the existence and location of accessible facilities and services, and
- When a facility is not accessible or does not provide accessible services, recipients should provide adequate signage at the primary entrance to direct users to where they can obtain information about accessible facilities and services

Finally, recipients must use the international symbol for accessibility at each primary entrance of an accessible facility.

Additional alternative forms of communication provided at the Illinois workNet Centers, include TTY/TDD (NextTalk Services), Braille, Dragon Speak, the Illinois Relay Center, and Interpreter services. These services are described below:

- Teletypewriter (TTY/TDD) – Individuals with impaired hearing who have questions or require information about WIA programs are advised to call 1-800-785-6055. This number is published on the “Equal Opportunity is the Law” poster that is distributed statewide to all Illinois workNet Centers.
- Illinois Relay Center - The Illinois Relay Service (IRC), also known as Telecommunications Relay Service (TRS), is a free service provided 24-hour a day, seven day a week, service providing a communication link between persons using a text telephone (TT) and persons using a standard voice telephone (See Illinois Relay Information - Attachment 5.3). Specially trained communications assistants relay conversations over the telephone between a person using a TT and a person using a standard voice telephone simultaneously. All calls through the IRC are strictly confidential, as employees may not discuss any information seen or heard as they assist with calls. Communication Assistants will relay entire conversations, and there is no record of the call, other than billing data, after the conversation is completed. TT users dial 1- 800-526-0844; telephone users dial 1-800-526-0857 (Illinois Relay).

Interpreter Services - DCEO and workNet Centers contact the Illinois Deaf and Hard of Hearing Commission (IDHHC) through their web site (www.idhhc.state.il.us) or by calling 877-455-3323 for assistance. The State WIA EO Officer assists managers and staff in making referrals using Illinois’ Interpreter Registry (See Statewide Interpreter Referral Agencies - Attachment 5.4) to appropriate sources for WIA services.

Pre-employment or Pre-training Inquiries

Generally, a recipient may not ask an applicant for employment or training whether s/he has a disability or the nature or severity of a disability, except for the following reasons: (§32.15)

- When a recipient is taking remedial action to correct the effects of past performance;
- When the recipient or the government is attempting to determine the extent to which the recipient has operated its programs in a nondiscriminatory way; and,
- When the recipient or the government is collecting EO data.

The prohibition against asking an applicant about a disability does not apply when such an inquiry is required or necessitated by federal law or regulation. However, before applicants are asked to provide information about their medical condition or history, even if the question is allowable under one of the exceptions, applicants must be:

- Told that the information is being requested on a voluntary basis.
- Informed about the ways in which the information will be used and the narrow circumstances under which the information may be disclosed.

Recipients may not require pre-employment medical examinations. However, they may condition a job offer on the results of a medical examination to be conducted prior to the individual’s entrance on duty under any of the following circumstances:

- A medical examination is required for that job regardless of disability status
- Results are not to be used unjustifiably to discriminate on the basis of disability
- Information is kept confidential

Reasonable Accommodation

While accessibility is proactive, meaning there requires planning before any person with a disability asks to participate in the program. By contrast, reasonable accommodation is reactive as it refers to the actions a program must take at the time that a particular person with a disability wants to take part in the program or service, based on that person's individual needs. DCEO adheres to the regulations and provides accessibility for individuals with disabilities and encourages reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities. Individuals with known disabilities are entitled to reasonable accommodations for the application process or admissions process. Once an applicant with a known disability is admitted, reasonable accommodations are changes that can be made to allow the individual to receive equal benefits. For individuals with disabilities hired to work for the program, reasonable accommodations are changes that can be made to enable them to perform the essential functions of the job.

EOMC follows a three phase operational plan to address accommodations as listed below:

1. In the first phase, a person with a disability must be accommodated so that s/he can go through the application or admission process.
2. In the second phase, once admitted to a program, a person with a disability must receive accommodation to be allowed to receive benefits.
3. In the third phase, once a person with a disability is hired, reasonable accommodations must be made to allow that person to do the job.

Accommodations vary from person to person and situation to situation. These general principles simply provide a context for understanding how EOMC applies the concept of reasonable accommodation. Requests for reasonable accommodations may be made by the individuals making the request, or their representatives. DCEO requires recipients to provide reasonable accommodations for individuals with disabilities, unless providing the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the program.

Undue hardship may result if a requested accommodation requires "significant financial difficulty or expense" to complete. The factors listed here summarize what the recipient must consider in deciding whether a particular accommodation would impose an undue hardship. Factors EOMC and its recipients consider when determining the feasibility of the accommodation include the:

- Type of accommodation asked for
- Net cost of the accommodation
- Overall size of the program
- Overall financial resources
- Effect that providing the accommodation would have on the program or facility's ability to serve other customers and carry out its mission.

If the recipient decides that a requested accommodation creates an undue hardship, it must take any steps that eliminate the hardship, but that will enable the person with a disability to participate in the program to the maximum extent possible. Additionally, the recipient must prepare a written statement of the reasons underlying their decision and provide a copy of that statement to the person who requested the accommodation. The recipient is obligated to provide reasonable accommodations as expeditiously as possible, but in not more that 60 days from the time that the request is acknowledged, except where structural changes in facilities are necessary.

In the event that structural changes are necessary, the recipient must develop a transition plan, establishing the steps necessary, including a time frame, to complete the required changes. This plan must be developed in partnership with the individual for whom the accommodation is being designed.

Employment Related Provisions

The Illinois WIA program requires its recipients to promote employment opportunities for individuals with disabilities and encourages its recipients to consider qualified individuals with disabilities for their job openings. Each Illinois workNet Center has an operational plan that addresses how these services are accomplished.

The Department of Human Services (DHS) provides services and activities for individuals with disabilities. DHS is partnered with the Illinois workNet and staff works with the WIA client case managers, when necessary, to ensure WIA services are made available. Through this cooperative partnership, evaluation of the clients' employment capabilities, appropriate work environment, and identification and development of suitable job openings is accomplished. Employment counseling through DHS and LWIAs helps clients recognize vocational options, develop a plan to achieve employment goals, overcome barriers to employment, and adjust to the work environment. Job-ready individuals with disabilities receive consideration for suitable openings in the job matching process.

Confidentiality

The State WIA EO Officer, through the monitoring process, ensures WIA recipients maintain the confidentiality of medical information provided by applicants and registrants. Some of the items that are reviewed by the State WIA EO Officer include:

- The LWIAs develop a written confidentiality policy that specifically addresses medical information and staff has been trained/apprised of the policy;
- Medical information is maintained in a separate locked container.
- Medical information is available only to persons with a need to know as outlined in 32.15 (d) (1 - 4).

There are very limited circumstances under which recipients may disclose medical information, including the fact that the participant has a disability. These include the following:

- Medical information may be disclosed to Supervisors and managers so that they can understand the limitations on activities that the participant or employee can perform and plan accordingly. They would also need disability information to arrange for reasonable accommodation;
- First aid and emergency personnel need to be told about medical conditions that may require emergency treatment; and,
- Government officials who are investigating compliance with disability nondiscrimination laws should receive medical information if they request it.

Recipients must keep disability-related records confidential. This includes records containing information about the results of medical examinations. This means that recipients must keep this information separate from other information about each participant, whether this information is on paper or in an electronic format.

Integration

The State provides technical assistance and provides training to recipients to apprise them of their duty to serve individuals with disabilities in the most integrated setting appropriate to that individual.

ELEMENT SIX
DATA AND INFORMATION COLLECTION
29 CFR 37.54 (D) (1) (IV) AND (VI)

Introduction

Consistent with 29 CFR 37.54 (d) (1) (iv) and (vi) and 29 CFR 37.37 through 37.41 and 29 CFR 37.53, DCEO collects, maintains and is able to provide data and reports necessary to assist the CRC, State, and LWIA EO officers to monitor a recipient's performance and to identify instances or areas of discrimination. DCEO Policy Letter No. 00-06 (See DCEO Policy Letter No. 00-06 Data Information Collection - [Attachment 6.1](#)) addressed how the LWIAs and its sub-recipients are complying and will continue to comply with the requirements regarding data collection and maintenance. The Code of Federal Regulations names three key requirements for Data and Information Collection and Maintenance:

1. **Ensure a properly functioning data collection and maintenance system.** Each recipient must establish a properly functioning system that will collect data and information in accordance with WIA regulations.
2. **Provide information to the Director of the CRC.** The CRC requires both regulatory and discretionary information be provided to verify that the recipient has complied with WIA regulations.
3. **Maintain confidentiality of data.** All applicants for and recipients of WIA funding have the responsibility to maintain the confidentiality of information that is collected.

Data Categories

Monitoring activities are critical to identifying discriminatory practices and largely depend on the existence of verifiable applicant and participant data. Data is collected and maintained by race, ethnicity, sex, age, and disability status. All applicant characteristics are collected at point of intake and/or service. Race/ethnicity categories are stipulated through Federal requirements and our data collection efforts reflect the following classifications: White; Black or African-American; Hispanic or Latino; Native American and Asian/Pacific Islander. The information is used only for record keeping, reporting, determining applicant eligibility, and determining program compliance with nondiscrimination requirements for specified, targeted groups. The collection of data reflects the composition of the LWIA workforce at each geographical location, by race, national origin, sex and disability, and any other category that DCEO may require.

Illinois Workforce Development System (IWDS)

The Illinois Workforce Development System (IWDS) records and stores WIA programmatic and demographic data in accordance with guidance from the Office of Employment and Training. IWDS is compliant with 29 CFR 37.37 through 37.41 in the collection of the required EO statistical data at the point in which the job seeker/client is "registered" or the person hired becomes an employee of the agency or its partnerships. Recipients are required to maintain statistical analysis records in accordance with 29 CFR 37.54 A (3)(d)(2)(II). Procedures have been enacted for investigating and accessing any significant statistical disparity. (See Sample Standard Deviation Model – Attachment 6-2). Statistical analysis records will be reviewed to ensure demographic parity. Investigations will be automatically conducted when disparities are noted outside of the acceptable ranges in whatever

statistical method is used to measure demographic group applicant enrollment i.e. (80% rule or the Standard Deviation). Standard cause for an investigation would be when the selection rate for any demographic group is less than 80% or if the selection rates are more than two standard deviations away from the mean. We verify each area's data by using the 2010 Census data, LMI Data, and use of IWDS data.

A fundamental goal of IWDS is to provide case managers with a state-of-the art tool for managing their customers' programs, by collecting data about the participant's acceptance rates by race/ethnicity, sex, age, and disability status for those who apply for and receive services funded by WIA programs. This includes evaluating client eligibility, recording assessment results, developing and implementing service plans, inserting case notes and exit outcomes. WIA Programs we monitor include: adult, dislocated worker, youth programs, Trade Adjustment Act (TAA), Disability Employment Initiative (DEI), Rapid Response, Workforce Development (WDQI), WIF Partners & Regional, and National Emergency Grants (NEG). (See Federal Grants Monitored – Attachment 6.3)

Data Confidentiality

Included in the Department's Discrimination Complaint Procedures are the laws and regulations that govern the Department's use of personal information. These policies and procedures are in place to safeguard documentation pertaining to specific job seekers, program participants, enrollees, benefit claimants, employers, and agency/partnership employees. Data is accessible only to authorized personnel needing access to the systems providing direct services. IWDS collects demographic information, as required by USDOL, and reflects the composition of each LWIA's workforce by race, national origin, sex, and disability. This information is confidential and used for determining program compliance with nondiscrimination requirements.

DCEO mandates that all recipients financially assisted under Title I of the WIA must have in place a written policy regarding who has access to medical information. Records, particularly those containing medical information, are stored in a manner that ensures their confidentiality. Only persons with a need to know will be privy to the information as outlined in 32.15 (d) (1), (2), (3), and (4). All non-medical records are kept in a separate place from records that contain medical information. Medical records might include insurance application forms as well as health certificates, and results from physical exams. Within each WIA recipient grant agreement, records retention and right of inspection clauses are included. At the local level, each LWIA is required to provide a copy of its' written procedures, demonstrating data collection, access and maintenance to records meeting the requirements of 29 CFR 37.37 through 37.41. Each grant recipient and sub-recipient is accountable for all funds received and shall maintain for a minimum of three (3) years, following the date of submission by the Grantee of its final expenditure report, all books, records, and supporting documentation necessary to verify the expenditure and use of expended funds.

Asserted considerations of privacy or confidentiality are not a basis for withholding information from EOMC and will not bar EOMC staff from evaluating or seeking to enforce compliance. Grant applicants and recipients are ultimately responsible;

- Records must be stored to ensure confidentiality;
- Only staff who need to know should have access to records and information; and,
- Complainants and those who provide information must be protected against retaliation.

Complaint Logs

DCEO maintains a confidential discrimination complaint log that includes:

- (a) complainant name and address;

- (b) grounds of the complaint;
- (c) description of the complaint;
- (d) date filed;
- (e) disposition and date; and,
- (f) any other pertinent information.

As required, EOMC maintains the complaint log and actions taken on the complaints for a period of not less than three years from the date of the resolution of the complaint. WIA regulations grant authority to the CRC Director to require additional information to determine compliance with EO rules:

- Recipients must notify the CRC Director if an administrative action or lawsuit is filed against them alleging discrimination.
- Applicants and recipients must let the CRC Director know the name of any federal agency that has conducted an investigation and found the applicant or recipient to be in noncompliance with civil rights procedures if that investigation was within two years prior to the time the WIA application was filed. This constitutes their EO history. See Element Eight for additional information on the data maintained in the complaint log.

ELEMENT SEVEN
COMPLIANCE MONITORING
29 CFR 37.54 (D) (2) (II)

Introduction

Element Seven describes the compliance monitoring procedures that ensure DCEO's compliance with the requirements of Section 188 and 29 CFR 37. DCEO is responsible for monitoring all WIA financially assisted programs for compliance with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions. DCEO Policy Letter 00-07, EO/WIA Compliance Monitoring, directs all LWIAs to establish procedures to monitor periodically all aspects of EO/ADA compliance with Section 188 and 29 CFR 37 (See [Attachment 7.1](#)).

Monitoring Responsibilities

29 CFR 37.5 – 37.10 requires detailed information for the EO monitoring process. DCEO meets the standards of periodic monitoring set forth by the CFR by providing monitoring information described by the following:

- The procedure for reviewing recipients' policies and procedures to ensure that these policies and procedures do not violate the prohibitions outlined in section 188 of WIA, specifically;
- The written reports prepared for each review. These reports must provide, among other things, that the results of the monitoring activities will be made available to the recipient(s) through a monitoring corrective action letter;
- The involvement of the State and LWIA EO Officer(s) in conducting reviews. Where individuals other than the State or LWIA EO Officers carry EO monitoring out, the narrative should provide the names, job titles, and the WIA organizations in which these persons are employed;
- The level of training provided, and by whom, to these individuals, and how does the State WIA Officer coordinate the review efforts from start to finish; and,
- The procedure for determining which recipients are to be reviewed, the frequency of reviews of recipients, and the number of recipients to be reviewed per year.

Both the State and LWIAs share equal responsibility to monitor for compliance. The monitoring schedule is comprehensive, and it involves the State WIA EO Officer, LWIA Executive Officers/Administrators, key management staff, LWIA EO Officers, and the assigned dRCs. The State's WIA EOMC staff will visit each LWIA site once every three years. Additional visits may be scheduled if the situation warrants ensuring implementation of corrective measures.

DCEO imposes specific requirements upon itself as well as the LWIAs for complying with monitoring responsibilities. Each EO monitoring review must include a review of each recipient's collective EO/ADA internal control programs and operations to determine if:

- The recipient is complying with its administrative obligations under Section 188 of WIA. Examples of these administrative obligations include designating an EO Officer, Notice and Communications, reasonable accommodations, confidential information and record protection, tag lines, LEP Program, operability of current assistive technology, bulletin board maintenance, and contractual Assurances.
- The recipient is complying with its MOA responsibilities.

- The recipient's programs and services are free of discrimination practices.

In order to make the above assessments ensuring nondiscrimination in EO operations, DCEO's periodic monitoring review includes:

- Conducting EO monitoring/evaluation reviews
- Evaluating policy development, communication, and training
- Analyses by race/ethnicity, sex, age, and disability status to determine significant differences; and,
- Analyses of records, client interviews, and other appropriate methods to determine causes of differences.

Follow-up investigations are conducted when there are significant demographic analytical differences to determine whether the differences are due to discriminatory conduct or to some other factors. The use of record reviews, interviews, and other appropriate investigation techniques aid in the identification of the potential issues. When WIA EO/ADA compliance violations are found, **DCEO will use enforcement procedures detailed in Element #9 of this MOA (29 CFR 37.54 (d)(2)(vii)).**

Local workforce Areas

The State of Illinois has twenty-three (23) LWIAs. There are thirty (30) workNet Centers (One-Stops) and 77 Affiliate Site locations. Each monitoring cycle will consist of at least eight (8) to ten (10) monitoring visits to LWIA's and their affiliates annually. In turn, each LWIA will monitor their sub-recipients annually and provide DCEO with their findings and corrective actions. Each LWIA is expected to monitor their workNet Centers and affiliates using a 3-year cycle similar to the method used by the State.

Monitoring tools used are as follows:

- Monitoring Instrument** -The procedures for monitoring are listed in the monitoring instrument per policy letters and the MOA. (See Monitoring Instrument - Attachment 7-2).
- workNet Center Accessibility Checklist** - This checklist was comprised from relevant guidance referenced in the ADAAG and the Illinois Accessibility Code. (See workNet Center Accessibility Checklist - Attachment 7-3).
- Self Evaluation Tool** - Official information provided to the State about the EO/ADA status in the LWIA. (See Self-Evaluation Tool - Attachment 7-4). This instrument provides a terse view of the important checkpoints in the LWIA.
- DCEO Site Review Survey** - This tool measures staff effectiveness, training, and knowledge about the EO/ADA programs. (See DCEO Site Review Survey Attachment 7-5).
- Client Survey** - This is a marketing tool used to measure customer satisfaction. The tool is crafted to collect feedback information from clients or applicants. (See Client Survey - Attachment 7-6)
- Sample Monitoring Visit Announcement Letter** - These letters are provided to the LWIA's Executive Directors and EO Officers to finalize important coordination matters (i.e. inspection dates, inspection team, purpose of the visit, areas to be inspected, to establish points of contacts, and to secure administrative details and set up entrance and exit briefings). (See Sample Monitoring Announcement Letter - Attachment 7-7)
- Current Monitoring Schedule** (See Monitoring Schedule - [Attachment 7.8](#)).

- h. **List of WIA Funded Programs Monitored** (See Programs Monitored Attachment 7.9)
- i. **Sample Findings Letter (See Findings Letter – Attachment 7.10)**

State and LWIA monitors will use similar monitoring tools and processes to identify problem areas, operational weaknesses, and to develop corrective actions plans. Follow-up visits may be scheduled as necessary to ensure that the appropriate corrective actions were completed.

In demonstrating compliance with CRC regulations, it is necessary for an LWIA grant recipient who has received WIA financial assistance from the State to show its adherence to policies, procedures, and systems contained in the State's WIA MOA. Included in the documents section is the monitoring instrument used during on-site monitoring visits to acquire data from the LWIA recipients. The monitoring instrument is modeled after the nine elements of the WIA Methods of Administration (MOA). The monitoring instrument does not create new legal requirements or change current legal requirements, as its purpose is to facilitate an evaluation of the extent to which recipients are complying with the following administrative obligations:

- Equal Opportunity Officers (37.23-37.28)
- Notice and Communication (37.29-37.36)
- Assurances, job training plans, contracts and policies and procedures (37.20-37.22)
- Universal Access (37.42)
- Data Collection and Record Keeping (37.37)
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
- Data and Information Collection and Maintenance (37.37-37.41)
- Complaint Processing Procedures (37.70-37.80)
- Corrective Actions and Sanctions (37.54(d)(2)(vii))

DCEO Accessibility Checklist is an extension of the monitoring instrument used to determine compliance with disability requirements found in 29 CFR Part 37 and Section 188. The Accessibility Checklist identifies the basic requirements under Section 188 of WIA. It includes portions of the regulations that implement Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act as applicable to LWIA grant recipients concerning the operation of their WIA programs and activities.

Desk Reviews

Desk reviews begin with a self-evaluation prepared for EOMC by the LWIA EO Officer. Incomplete or incorrect responses to the self-evaluation will, at a minimum, prompt technical assistance and further monitoring. LWIA EO Officers submit self-evaluation reports prior to the on-site monitoring visit to assist DCEO EO monitors conducting their comprehensive review. In years where on-site monitoring is not scheduled, each LWIA submits an annual self-evaluation to the State WIA EO Officer. Those evaluations are reviewed EOMC monitors assigned to the respective LWIA..

In addition to the self-evaluation, the desk review will include:

- EO Appointment Letter
- EO Job Description
- Agency's Organizational Chart
- Review of reports from previous non-discrimination program reports;
- Review of discrimination complaint files;
- Review of compliance monitoring reports prepared by the LWIA EO Officer;

- Review of program accessibility self-evaluation and procedures to ensure compliance with requirements pertinent to individuals with disabilities; and
- Review of facility accessibility surveys;
- Website 508 Accessibility;
- 5-Year Marketing Outreach Plans;
- IWDS registration Data using the Standard Deviation Analysis Method; and,
- Review of IDES Census Demographic Data.

NOTE for 2014-2015: On August 27, 2013, each LWIA EO Officer was provided with an Excel spreadsheet and instructed to use it to develop the statistical or other quantifiable analysis in accordance with 29 C.F.R. § 37.54(d)(2)(ii)(A). The spreadsheet contains the appropriate formulas for assessing whether protected classes are achieving equal and proportionate services within the WIA programs. The State WIA EO Officer and EOMC staff will (i) assess whether each LWIA is collecting and maintaining the information required by 29 C.F.R. §37.37 by October 30, 2014; (ii) collect and analyze the data by race/ethnicity, sex, age, and disability status, and determine whether any differences in participation in the WIA programs exist and conduct a follow-up investigation to determine whether any differences are caused by discrimination; and (iii) complete any follow-up investigations and establish any corrective action plans by March 15, 2015.

This information will be compiled and analyzed to determine deficiencies. A report will be issued to the LWIA within thirty (30) days of receipt.

On-Site Reviews

On-Site Reviews provide the opportunity to meet and discuss policies, procedures, or issues with top LWIA management and the EO Officer. It may be used to clarify information from the desk review. The primary contact during this phase of the review is the LWIA EO Officer. The site review consists of the following:

- An entrance conference, to include discussion of the results of the desk review;
- Policy and Procedures Review (i.e. EO Program staff training, Sexual Harassment, Complaints, Monitoring Procedures, LEP Program, Random sample of Applicant Files);
- Site locations, points-of-contacts, and route coordination;
- Website Accessibility
- Staff surveys and interviews;
- Customer surveys and interviews;
- Facility-accessibility survey review and assessment;
- Review of customer information materials, tag lines, bulletin boards, to include materials in alternative formats and languages other than English;
- Review of community contact programs;
- Complaint-file review;
- Discussion of program intake and assessment processes, to include provisions to serve individuals with disabilities or who are non-English speaking (LEP Program & language cards);
- Contracts and assurances boiler plate clauses and other similar agreements are reviewed to ensure that they are nondiscriminatory;
- Review of EO role-related training and budgets for equal opportunity officers planned and accomplished to date; and,
- An exit conference, to include discussion of preliminary findings, if any.

If technical assistance is necessary, it may be done during the on-site visit as time permits or scheduled at a future date.

Local Monitoring

Each LWIA EO Officer, using the same monitoring process developed and used at the State level, monitors the activities of the Illinois workNet Center, satellite locations, and contractor activities to ensure EO/ADA compliance. The monitoring review process requires written reviews as specified in 29 CFR 37. These monitoring reports are kept on file for at least 3-years. Statewide Report consistency is encouraged. DCEO developed monitoring tools that are useful to ensure a consistent statewide approach to monitoring for nondiscrimination and equal opportunity in the Illinois workNet system.

Monitoring Corrective Action Letter

DCEO monitors will prepare a monitoring corrective action letter that details the findings and deficiencies identified during the monitoring activities within ninety (90) days. LWIA Directors will be responsible for responding to the letter with a written response to the findings and corrective actions within sixty (60) days. (See Attachment 7.10 – Findings Report) In those situations where there are no findings identified, a “no finding” letter will be sent to the CEO, LWIB Chair and the LWIA Director.

Conducting Follow Up

Upon receipt of the monitoring report, the LWIA Director will respond to the corrective action identified as to how the LWIA is going to implement the corrective activities described in the monitoring review. This written response is sent to the State WIA EO Officer for review and approval. If on-site follow-up monitoring determines the causes for the initial finding have not been appropriately corrected, technical assistance is offered, and further corrective actions are mandated. In the event if follow up activities are necessary, DCEO EO Compliance Monitors will schedule follow up visits to ensure that corrective actions have been implemented.

ELEMENT EIGHT
COMPLAINT PROCESSING PROCEDURES
29 CFR 37.54 (D) (I) (V)

Introduction

DCEO's complaint processing procedure to advise LWIA customers and employees of their right to file a complaint is outlined in PY '00 EO/WIA Policy Letter No. 00 – 08 (See EO/WIA Policy Letter No. 00 – 08 Complaint Processing Procedures - [Attachment 8.1](#)). The policy letter is consistent with **29 CFR Part 37.76 through 37.79**, and identifies the requirements by which recipients (those entities to which financial assistance under WIA Title I is extended, either directly from the USDOL or through the Governor or another recipient) comply with complaint processing.

Recipients That Must Comply With Complaint Procedures

As previously stated, a recipient is any entity that qualifies and receives financial assistance to provide WIA programs or services. As defined under subpart A 37.54 (3), Illinois WorkNet Center partners are treated as recipients and are subject to the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirements based on their participation in the workNet Center delivery system. The list of recipients that must comply with EOMC's complaint procedures include, but is not limited to:

- State-level agencies that administer WIA funds;
- State Employment Security Agencies (UI);
- State and Local Workforce Investment Boards;
- LWIA Grant recipients;
- workNet Center operators and partners;
- Providers of services, and benefits;
- On-the-job (OJT) employers;
- Job Corps contractors and center operators (excluding federally operated centers); and,
- Placement agencies, including Job Corps contractors that perform these functions.

Key Elements of the Complaint

29 CFR 37 outlines specific elements that must be apparent in the recipient's complaint processing procedures. The procedures must include the following elements as described in attachment 8.2:

1. Initial written notice including:

- Acknowledgment of the written complaint
- Notice to the complainant of his or her right to be represented in the complaint process.

2. Written statement of issues including:

- List of the issues raised in the complaint
- Statement whether the recipient accepts the issue for investigation or rejects the issue and the reasons for each rejection

3. Process for investigation or fact-finding

- The choice to use customary process rests with the complainant

4. **Alternative Dispute Resolution Process**

- Choice for the complainant to use ADR or the customary process
- Provision for any party to file a complaint with the CRC Director if ADR agreement is breached

5. **Written Notice of Final Action including:**

- The recipient's decision and explanation (investigation or fact-finding) or of the way the parties resolved the issue if using ADR;
 - A notice stating that if the complainant is dissatisfied with the recipient's resolution of the complaint, he or she has the right to file a complaint with CRC within 30 days
- Notice of final Action (90 days); and,
 - Record keeping.

Jurisdiction

Any person, or any specific class of individuals, who believes that **they have been** or are being subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability, political affiliation or belief and, for participants only, citizenship may file a complaint under WIA. Examples of typical complainants include, but are not limited to:

- Applicants and/or registrants for aid, benefits, services, or training;
- Eligible applicants/registrants;
- Participants;
- Employees;
- Applicants for employment;
- Service providers who may be attributed a racial, national origin, or other characteristic entitled to protection under WIA; and
- Eligible service providers.

Complainants may file a written complaint either on their own or through a representative. These complaints can take one of three forms: individual, class action, or third party. An individual complaint occurs when an individual alleging he had been personally subjected to discrimination. A class action complaint occurs when one or more individuals file the complaint. This action is not only on behalf of themselves, but also on behalf of a group of similarly situated individuals. Class action complainants must have "standing" by being a member adversely affected class and have been injured by the alleged discrimination. In addition, all individuals included in the complaint must provide a signed consent document. Class action secures a remedy that eliminates the following:

- a. Discrimination against person(s) named in the complaint;
- b. Discrimination against other injured parties, regardless of whether they have been individually named in the complaint; or,
- c. Discrimination caused by a practice or policy.

Lastly, EOMC accepts third party complaints when an authorized representative of injured individual (s), alleges discrimination against another group or individual after being subjected to discrimination.

The complainant may file a discrimination charge if an organization, such as the NAACP, provides the necessary contact information for the injured party.

Information Required for a Complaint

A complaint must be filed in writing using the complaint form developed by the State or the CRC's Complaint Information Form and must contain standard information as described in 29 CFR 37.73:

- Complainant's contact information;
- The identity of the respondent or entity alleged to have discriminated;
- Correct jurisdiction;
- Timeliness of filing (180 days of the alleged incident filing timeframe);
- A signature from the complainant or their authorized representative

It is important that the allegations be described in sufficient detail to determine the apparent merit of the complaint covered by EOMC's jurisdiction. This means that the allegation of discrimination, or complaint, if proven true, would violate WIA regulations. There is no apparent merit if the allegation of discrimination does not reference a basis prohibited under Section 188 of WIA. Once the complainant demonstrates apparent merit, EOMC then establishes:

Written Notification

A Notice of Receipt will be issued within five (5) working days from the date of receipt of a written complaint. Should the complaint be accepted or rejected for jurisdictional reasons, EOMC will send the complainant a Written Notice of Lack of Jurisdiction including:

- The reason(s) for the determination;
- Notice that the complainant has a right to file a complaint with the CRC within 30 days of receiving the Written Notice of Lack of Jurisdiction

90-day Processing Timeframe

Within 90 days of receipt of the complaint, EOMC will either issue:

- a Written Notice of Lack of Jurisdiction; or
- Refer the complainant to another federal grant-making agency for investigation where there is dual jurisdiction; or,
- Issue a Written Notice of Final Action.

Notice of Complaint Processing Procedures

All Illinois workNet Centers, affiliates, contractors, and partners may access EOMC's complaint processing procedures on DCEO's website (see Complaint Processing Procedures - [Attachment 8.2](#)). Applicants receive a copy and are required to sign a statement indicating they understand the complaint processing procedures. Recipients may receive alternate formats to all handouts upon request. In addition, DCEO's web site provides a link to resources that will tell recipients what to do if they experience discrimination.

Roles and Responsibilities

The State WIA EO Officer has overall responsibility for developing and implementing complaint procedures, as well as ensuring appropriate complaint processing training to LWIA EO Officers. The State WIA EO Officer provides oversight, monitoring and technical consultation for the processing of all discrimination complaints regarding WIA Title I services, including provision of the ADR required under 29 CFR Part 37.25.

Responsibilities for LWIA EO Officers include:

- Adopting, publicizing and implementing the state discrimination process in their area in accordance with these regulations;
- Assisting customers in filing a complaint;
- Providing oversight and monitoring for logging, tracking, reporting and processing of all discrimination complaints filed regarding WIA Title I services;
- Providing EO guidance to local intake services for discrimination complaints to determine if the complaint is covered by 29 CFR Part 37, resolving jurisdictional issues, and, if appropriate, routing the complaint to the appropriate entity for processing;
- Monitoring the activities of the recipient to ensure that nondiscrimination and equal opportunity obligations are not being violated, and to review written policies to ensure that those policies are nondiscriminatory;
- The LWIA EO Officer confers with the State WIA EO Officer promptly upon receipt of the complaint, prior to determining jurisdiction over the matter;
- Conducting the fact-finding, facilitating mediation as appropriate, and issuing Notices of Final Action in complaints filed at the local level; and,

Record Keeping

As previously stated in Element 6, both the LWIA EO Officer and the State WIA EO Officer shall maintain records regarding complaints and actions taken for three years from the date of resolution of the complaint. All complaints will be annotated on a Complaint Log. (See Complaint Log – Attachment 8.3 and instructions for preparing the complaint log – Attachment 8.4). The complaint log will contain the following:

- The number assigned to the complaint. To standardize case numbers assigned to complaints, the following method is to be used -the consecutive order in which the complaint was received, and the current program year;
- The date the complaint was received;
- The name and address of the complainant; category of complainant (i.e., employee, applicant, participant, client or organization);
- Status of the complaint;
- Was this a DOL Funded Program;
- Date of alleged discrimination;
- The basis/ issue(s) of complaint;
- The name and address of the respondent; category of respondent (service provider, administrative entity, grant recipient or private employer);
- Is the complainant a WIA recipient;
- Disposition of Complaint

- Date and results of determination, and
- Was ADR used? (Yes/No)

Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR)

ADR consists of a variety of approaches and techniques for dispute resolution that include coaching, facilitation, mediation, and arbitration. Each ADR technique provides an opportunity to discuss and consider possible solutions with the assistance of a neutral third party. The Notice of Receipt contains information instructing the complainant of ADR and the options available. If the complainant selects ADR, and the method proves unsuccessful in mitigating their complaint, the complainant can select another technique of ADR. Should a situation arise that necessitates a third party dispute professional, the Office of Equal Opportunity Monitoring and Compliance will contract with an appropriate service vendor to conduct the ADR activity.

Due Process

Upon receiving and processing the complaint, EOMC provides written notice to all parties who have a legitimate interest in the complaint. Regulations require that an “impartial” decision-maker investigate and process complaints. All parties receive due process during the investigative process including:

- Representation
- Present evidence
- Question others who present evidence
- File with CRC when they are not satisfied with an agency’s decision
- Decisions should be made strictly based on evidence gathered (no outside factors will be taken into consideration).

Fact Finding/Investigation

Both State and LWIA investigators gather information relating to the alleged discriminatory actions during the fact-finding process, including:

- Discussions with the complainant in order to record all elements of the complaint;
- Interviews with any witnesses or others who have knowledge of the issue involved;
- Review of written and electronic files and records which pertain to the complainant and the alleged discrimination; and,
- Interviews with the respondent.

Notice of Final Action

The Complainant receives a written Notice of Final Action within 90 days of the receipt of a complaint. If the investigating authority finds reasonable cause to believe that the respondent has violated the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of WIA or 29 CFR Part 37, the Notice of Final Action shall include:

- The specific findings of the investigation;
- An explanation of the reasons underlying the decision;
- A description of the way the parties resolved the issue;

- The corrective action and timeline; and,
- Notice that the complainant has the right to file a complaint with the Civil Rights Center Director within 30 days of the issuance date of the Notice of Final Action if the complainant is dissatisfied.

Retaliation

DCEO has a zero tolerance policy that prohibits retaliation, intimidation, or reprisal during the course of any protected activity in the course of complaint investigations. Individuals have the right to file complaints if they believe they have been subjected to intimidation, coercion, or other threatening behavior because they:

- Filed or threatened to file a complaint;
- Opposed a practice prohibited by the non-discrimination and equal opportunity provisions of WIA; or,
- Exercised any rights and privileges, including furnishing information to, or assisting in any manner, an investigation, review, hearing, or any other activity related to the provisions under 29 CFR 37.

In general, EOMC maintains confidentiality regarding the identity of individuals who file complaints, supply information, oppose discriminatory actions or behaviors, or participate in investigations

ELEMENT NINE
CORRECTIVE ACTIONS/SANCTIONS
29 CFR 37.54 (D) (2) (VII)

Introduction

Recipients determined to be in violation of the nondiscrimination portions of the Workforce Investment Act as a result of a discrimination complaint, monitoring reviews or both, are required to take prompt corrective and/or remedial action. Element Nine demonstrates DCEO's compliance in applying appropriate corrective action and/or sanctions as instructed in **29 CFR 37.54 ((d) (2) (vii))**. (See Corrective Actions/Sanctions - Attachment 9.1)

Corrective Actions

A corrective action is required from a recipient when there is probable cause to believe a violation of the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirements of WIA has occurred. A violation is a failure to comply with WIA regulation and may range in seriousness from an infraction, or a technical violation, to a more significant discrimination violation. DCEO recognizes two different types of violations that if identified, must require corrective actions. These two types are identified and explained below as technical and discriminatory violations.

Technical Violation

Technical violations are based on a strict adherence contained within the implementation of the nondiscrimination provisions of 29 CFR Part 37 and to the policy, rules and procedures predicated from all applicable Federal and State laws. For example, a technical violation involving the failure to include tag lines in a communication would result in a corrective action to re-issue the communication with the tag lines included.

Whole Relief

Discrimination violations tend to be more serious breaches of regulations and may require more investigation than technical violations. To correct a discrimination violation, the appropriate corrective action shall include provisions to make "whole relief." Make-whole relief retroactively provides the victim(s) with whole or full monetary compensation or program services that may have been wrongly denied because of the discriminatory practice by bringing the person to the condition they would be in if, the discrimination had not occurred. Such relief might involve back pay, front pay, retroactive benefits, training, or any service discriminatorily denied.

Violation Compensation

Corrective action procedures include the execution of a written agreement or assurance documenting that the violation has been or will be corrected in a time frame that demonstrates that the corrective action will be completed as soon as possible. The procedures must also include the steps to be taken to ensure that the violation is not repeated. Federal funds may not be used to provide make-whole or any other form of monetary relief. The recipient is obliged to find another financial source, such as local tax dollars, to compensate the victim.

Both technical and discriminatory violations require corrective actions to be taken in a timely manner, and addressed in an appropriate and reasonable manner. An appropriate corrective or remedial action is designed to completely correct each violation. DCEO will seek corrective action from an LWIA in the following circumstances:

- Technical deficiencies such as a failure to follow through on written assurances or a barrier to universal access causing a disparate impact in services;
- Assessment of the circumstances surrounding a complaint and/or grievance, and/or the use of desk audits, on-site reviews, investigation, or other fact-finding tools in conjunction with the assessment process, reveals barriers to equal opportunity or access to WIA services; and,
- Refusals to implement voluntary corrective action, submit requested data or documentation, or provide access to premises or records during a compliance review.

Conciliation Agreements

When it is not possible to immediately carry out or complete a corrective action, a conciliation agreement is required. Examples of this situation include, but are not limited to instance involving:

- Correcting and republishing a brochure to include appropriate language regarding access for individuals with disabilities;
- Developing and delivering an EO training program; or,
- Providing whole relief to an individual or group of participants.

The conciliation agreement must follow the guidelines listed below:

- The agreement must be in writing and describe the violation(s);
- Specify the time frame for the applied corrective or remedial action
- Be sufficient in scope to avoid reoccurrence
- Institute periodic reporting on the status and allow for enforcement procedures

The State WIA EO Officer and/or Local EO officer must follow up to ensure that Prospective Relief Plans and Conciliation Agreements are fulfilled.

Sanctions

When a recipient does not have the capacity to correct a violation(s), or when it's clear that the recipient has failed or refuses to do so, DCEO is required to respond by imposing sanctions. EOMC has procedures in place to impose sanctions when all attempts to provide assistance to effect voluntary correction of a violation have failed, or when it is apparent that the recipient fails or refuses to correct the violation within the timeframe established. DCEO reserves the right to take enforcement proceedings as approved by the Director of DCEO when corrective actions are not carried out to comply with WIA regulations include suspension, termination, and denial of funding. DCEO explicitly

considers sanctions as the actions enforced through judicial process when a recipient refuses or fails to carry out corrective actions.

Due to either findings of discrimination as part of a complaint investigation, or compliance review, written notifications shall be issued to recipients of their noncompliance. Supportive documentation will indicate findings and methods to accomplish voluntary compliance in a corrective-action plan. The State WIA EO Officer works with the non-compliant entity to establish necessary schedules to correct the violation. In the case of a finding of discrimination, the corrective-action plan must provide for whole relief. The State WIA EO Officer may make recommendations for sanctions to the DCEO Director when the recipient does not comply with the established action plan. (See Corrective Action Guidelines - Attachment 9.2).

Important Websites

<http://www.illinois.gov/cdb/business/codes/> Illinois Accessibility Code Booklet

www.dol.gov/oasam/programs/crc/section188.htm WIA Section 188 Disability Checklist

<http://www.ccdionline.org/links.php> Coalition of Citizens With Disabilities in Illinois

www.eeoc.gov/ EEOC for guidance and/or training

www.contentquality.com Check website for accessibility requirement

<http://www.illinois.gov/dceo/AboutDCEO/Pages/State-EO-Officer.aspx>. This is the State's website for EO. Click on any of the links you need. Note there is an underscore between administration_director.

http://www.murray.senate.gov/public/_cache/files/3494f891-634a-4550-8a14-1e571dd5b72c/wioa-substitute-amendment-to-hr803-kin14310.pdf This is H.R. 803 which is the Workforce Innovative and Opportunity Act which was signed into Law on July 22, 2014 by the President of the United States.

<http://www.nationalskillscoalition.org/news/blog/breaking-wia-legislation-announced-vote-likely>
National Skills Coalition Blog interpretation of WIOA

www.illinoisworknet.com Illinois workNet Center

<http://www.doleta.gov/WIOA/> Great Source of Information on WIOA